# Seattle Christian Counseling

# Dr. Maria D. Reyes, PsyD., LMHC, NCC, BCPCC

Professional Counseling for Individuals 3212 Northwest Byron Street, Suite# 201, Silverdale, WA 98383 (360) 262-6301

#### To New Patients:

This packet includes information about me and forms for you to fill out and bring with you to our first session. It is a lot of reading, but the information is important, so please review it in its entirety. If for some reason you are unable to complete the paperwork before our session, I will have copies in my office, and we will use your session time to complete the paperwork.

Please complete this paperwork prior to our initial meeting so that we can spend our time together focusing on the personal concerns that you wish to consult me about. I look forward to meeting with you.

Table of Contents	
CHECKLIST FOR COMPLETING PAPERWORK	
DISCLOSURE STATEMENT	
DISCLOSURE AND FINANCIAL AGREEMENT	4
HIPAA COMPLIANCE NOTICE OF PRIVACY PRACTICES	7
YOUR HEALTH INFORMATION RIGHTS	
OUR RESPONSIBILITIES	
PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION	
SPECIAL AUTHORIZATIONS	
PATIENT ACKNOWLEDGMENT	
ONLINE THERAPY INFORMED CONSENT	
ONLINE THERAPY INFORMED CONSENT PART-2	
VIDEO AND AUDIO RECORDING RELEASE	
CREDIT CARD PAYMENT AUTHORIZATION FORM	16

Dr. Maria D. Reyes, PsyD., LMHC, NCC, BCPCC

#### CHECKLIST FOR COMPLETING PAPERWORK

- Please print your name in the space provided on this Page (Page 1).
- o Read through the Disclosure Statement. Sign on page 3.
- o Read Acknowledgement of Receipt of Notice of Privacy Practices and Financial Agreement on pages 5 through 12.
- Online Therapy Informed Consent Part 1 and Part 2. Page 13 &14.
- o Read through and sign the Video and Audio Recording Release on page 15.
- o Complete the Credit Card Authorization Form on page 16.
- o Initial all pages in lower right-hand corner to indicate that you have read and understand the information provided.

Patient Name:	
•	(please print)



Professional Counseling for Individuals 3212 Northwest Byron Street, Suite# 201, Silverdale, WA 98383 (360) 262-6301

#### **DISCLOSURE STATEMENT**

#### Counselor Training, Counseling Orientation, General Information, and Counseling Fees

**Training and Degrees:** I have been counseling for more than 11 years, working with adults and children in private practice, community mental health centers, and correctional settings. I earned my Bachelor of Science in Psychology, my Master of Science in Psychology, and my Doctorate in Psychology (Psy.D.) in Clinical Psychology General Practice from Carlos Albizu University, an APA accredited university in Miami, Florida. I am also a member of the National Board of Counselors (NCC) and a Board Certified Professional Christian Counselor (BCPCC) through the American Association of Christian Counselors (AACC). I have both clinical and assessment training with patients presenting a broad range of mental disorders, addictions, and medical conditions. I am credentialed as a Washington State Licensed Mental Health Counselor (LH60854744). Seattle Christian Counseling provides office space and administrative support for PsychWay, PLLC. PsychWay, PLLC is responsible for all patient care.

Counseling Orientation: I wholeheartedly believe in Philippians 4:13, which says that you and I can do all things through Him who strengthens us. With a Christian approach to therapy, I believe a lot more healing can be accomplished than would take place with my own interventions alone. No matter how skilled a therapist I am, He will always be the best healer. I will always pray on my own prior to your session to ensure the Holy Spirit will guide me in utilizing the proper interventions you need. Even if we have faith the size of a mustard seed, He will help us remove the mountain in front of us. If you allow me to, I will pray with you in the beginning of your session.

**Fees:** The fee for counseling is **\$250** initial intake sessions for individuals and \$200 per follow up sessions. Initial sessions are run in the 53-minute session format. Fees are adjusted annually on January 1 and will not increase more than 10% per year. Payments (cash, check, or credit) are to be made at the beginning of each session. In addition to your session fee, there will be a fee for using your credit card, which will be the exact amount the credit card company charges Seattle Christian Counseling, PLLC. Fees change regularly but will range between 2.5%-4% of your transaction. If you would like to know the exact current rate, please ask your therapist at the time of your appointment. Unpaid balances incur the maximum finance charge allowed by law after 30 days. Outstanding balances may be sent to a collection agency.

Missed Appointments: If you are unable to keep an appointment, please notify me via phone a minimum, of three business days (72 hours) in advance. The 72-hours does not include weekends or holidays. E-mail and text messages are not adequate notice. If you miss your appointment for whatever reason and fail to give me adequate notice, you will be responsible for \$250. If you are late, I will still stop at our regular ending time to keep my schedule, and you will still be required to pay for the entire session. In the event of a missed appointment, the bill will reflect a late cancellation instead of a clinical session. Most insurance companies will not reimburse for missed appointments. If I have an emergency, I will notify you as soon as possible of my need to reschedule our appointment.

**Termination of Treatment:** When you wish to terminate treatment, please give a minimum of one week's notice. You may terminate treatment at any time without moral, legal, or financial obligation beyond payment of services already rendered. It is expected that we will discuss the prospect of termination so that both parties will be clear about any details that need attention as part of the termination process. If you fail to schedule a future appointment, cancel a scheduled appointment, or fail to keep a scheduled appointment and do not contact me within 30 days of the date of last recorded contact, it will be understood that you have terminated treatment. I shall have no further obligation to you once treatment has been terminated.

**Testifying in Court:** If you become involved in any legal proceedings that require my participation, you will be expected to pay for all of my professional time. This includes any preparation and transportation time, even if I am called to testify by another party. Because of the difficulty of legal involvement, I charge \$250 per hour for preparation and travel, for attendance (waiting and participation) at any legal proceeding. Having said this, I am not a certified child custody evaluator and will be unable to help you legally if this is your purpose in pursuing treatment with me.

(Patient Initials)

# Seattle Christian Counseling

# Dr. Maria D. Reyes, PsyD., LMHC, NCC, BCPCC

Professional Counseling for Individuals 3212 Northwest Byron Street, Suite# 201, Silverdale, WA 98383 (360) 262-6301

**Choosing a Counselor:** You have the right to choose a counselor who best suits your needs and purposes. You may seek a second opinion from another mental health practitioner or may terminate therapy at any time.

**State Mandated Disclosure:** I have broad discretion to release any information that I deem relevant in situations where I believe my patient or others to be at risk of physical harm, physical or sexual abuse, molestation, or severe neglect.

**Consultations:** I regularly consult with other professionals regarding patients with whom I am working. This allows me to gain other perspectives and ideas about how to better help you reach your goals. These consultations are conducted in such a way that confidentiality is maintained.

**State Registration:** Therapists practicing psychotherapy for a fee must be registered or certified with the Department of Health for the protection of the public health and safety. Registration of an individual with the department does not include recognition of any practice standards, nor does it necessarily imply the effectiveness of any treatment. The purpose of the Counselor Credentialing Act (Chapter 18.19 RCW) is (a) to provide protection for public health and safety, and (b) to empower the citizens of the State of Washington by providing a complaint process against those counselors who commit acts of unprofessional conduct.

**Unprofessional Conduct:** The brochure titled "Counseling or Hypnotherapy Patients" lists ways in which counselors may work in an unprofessional manner. If you suspect that my conduct has been unprofessional in any way, please contact the Department of Health at the following address and phone number:

Department of Health, Counselor Programs PO Box 47869 Olympia WA 98504-7869 (360) 664-9098

Contacting Me by Phone: You may leave me a voice message at (360) 262-6301. I check this voicemail periodically and will typically return your call within 24 business hours. Please limit your phone conversation needs to appointment scheduling and emergencies.

	General Emergencies: Crisis Clinic:	911 (800) 244-5767 or (206) 461-3222
I have read and understand the	information present in this form.	
Date:		Patient Signature
Date:		Dr. Maria Reyes, PsyD., LMHC, NCC, BCPCC

**Emergencies:** If you are in an emergency and cannot reach me, please call one of the following numbers for help:



Professional Counseling for Individuals 3212 Northwest Byron Street, Suite# 201, Silverdale, WA 98383 (360) 262-6301

# DISCLOSURE AND FINANCIAL AGREEMENT FOR NEUROPSYCHOLOGICAL TESTING AND ASSESSMENT

<u>Financial Arrangements</u>: My psychometrists and I fully anticipate that the proposed neuropsychological assessment will be valuable. With any new professional relationship, it is appropriate to discuss financial arrangements. I will be available to respond to any questions which you might have, but this guideline will perhaps address many of the specifics regarding fees and typical insurance coverage.

<u>Schedule of Testing Fee(s)</u>: There is a \$250 hourly fee for conferences, individual fees for testing (based upon time for administration, scoring and interpretation) and for conferences.

<u>Schedule for Neuropsychological Testing</u>: Neuropsychological testing includes administration, scoring, and report writing at the rate of \$250 per hour. The first hour of intake of the interview is billed at my normal therapy rate of \$250. My follow up and results session is billed at my normal therapy rate of \$200.

<u>Schedule for Assessment Procedures</u>: Psychological testing includes evaluations for mood, stress, anxiety, personality, and coping styles with typically involves a fifty-three (53) minute intake session and 1-2 hours for me to write a comprehensive report, and a fifty-three (53) minute follow up session to discuss the results and is billed at my normal therapy rate of \$250 per hour.

The "full" battery (including reports, conferences, academic, intellectual, psychological, and neuropsychological measures of ability status) is approximately \$3,500. Obviously, this estimate can vary, according to the testing with the school or other professionals that have contributed, or the individual's test-taking stamina, etc.

SERVICE DESCRIPTION	FEE SCHEDULE
Intake Conference	Full Payment or insurance co-pay on date of service
Assessment and Report	Full Payment or insurance co-pay on date of service
Phone conference/Correspondence (>15 minutes)	Full Payment or insurance co-pay on date of service
	Responsibility of patient. Non-covered item.
	Full Payment Billed to Patient (Minimum charge \$250/ hr.)



Professional Counseling for Individuals 3212 Northwest Byron Street, Suite# 201, Silverdale, WA 98383 (360) 262-6301

<u>Payment</u>: All major credit cards including HSA (FSA excluded), personal checks, or cash will gladly be accepted for payment. A processing fee of up to 2.97% plus \$0.15 per transaction will be added to all credit or debit transactions. Delinquent accounts will be subject to a 1.0% interest fee on the unpaid balance and will be added to the unpaid balance or, if there is a default of payment, referral will be made to a collection agency. Failure to keep an account in good standing may cause further services to be withheld.

The patient or family is fully responsible for payment of fees, even when third party carriers offer reimbursement for portions of the services. <u>Please contact your insurance carrier in advance of the actual assessment to determine whether there is coverage, and what percentage of coverage you can anticipate.</u> It is usually helpful if the referring physician submits a brief formal request for services. <u>Your full payment or co-pay is</u> due and payable on the day of each session.

<u>PLEASE NOTE</u>: You must notify our office of a cancellation at least 72 business hours in advance of the appointment. If not, you will be charged a minimum of \$250.00 for single hour appointments, and \$800.00 for the neuropsychological evaluation testing sessions. Insurance does not pay for a no-show.

<u>Protected Health Information</u>: The Health Information Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 ("HIPAA") protects and safeguards Protected Health Information ("PHI"). Your psychological testing and report(s), notes and reports of your conferences are PHI. Seattle Christian Counseling, PLLC ("SCC") and I are both in compliance with HIPAA. We cannot in most circumstances release PHI without your written consent.

We will:

- Maintain the privacy of PHI about you.
- Give you this Notice of our legal duties and privacy practices with respect to PHI; and
- Comply with the terms of our Notice of Privacy Practices that is currently in effect.

The following categories describe ways we may use and disclose PHI for treatment, payment, or health care operations without your specific consent or specific authorization. The examples included in each category do not list every type of use or disclosure that may fall within that category.

<u>Treatment</u>: We may use and disclose PHI (psychological testing reports and conference(s) notes and reports) about you to provide, coordinate, or manage your health care and related services. We may consult with other health care providers regarding your treatment to coordinate and manage your health care with others. For example, we may use and disclose PHI when you need a prescription, lab work, or other health care services. In addition, we may use and disclose PHI about you when referring you to another health care provider.

We may also disclose PHI about you for the treatment activities of another health care provider.

<u>Testing Limitations:</u> Dr. Maria D. Reyes does not provide testimony for litigation purposes or parenting evaluations. Testing is exclusively for treatment planning and improving well-being.

(Patient Initials)



Professional Counseling for Individuals 3212 Northwest Byron Street, Suite# 201, Silverdale, WA 98383 (360) 262-6301

<u>Payment and Disclosure</u>: We may use and disclose PHI so that we can bill and collect payment for the treatment and services provided to you. Before providing treatment or services, we may share details with your health plan provider concerning the services you are scheduled to receive. For example, we may ask for payment approval from your health plan before we provide care or services. We may use and disclose PHI to find out if your health plan provider will cover the cost of care and services we provide. We may use and disclose PHI to confirm you are receiving the appropriate amount of care to obtain payment for services. We may use and disclose PHI for billing, claims management, and collection activities. We may disclose PHI to insurance companies providing you with additional coverage. We may disclose limited PHI to consumer reporting agencies relating to collection of payments owed to us.

Insurance providers have been requiring copies of your psychological report(s) prior to processing your claim(s). Your signature below would permit us to forward a copy of the report(s) requested. Please check with your insurance provider regarding the specific guidelines surrounding this documentation and your responsibility should you fail to authorize a release of your psychological report(s).

We may also disclose PHI to another health care provide or to a company or health plan required to comply with the HIPAA Privacy Rule for the payment activities of that health care provider, company, or health plan. For example, we may allow a health insurance company to review PHI for the insurance company's activities to determine the insurance benefits to be paid for your care.

<u>Health Care Operations</u>: We may use and disclose PHI in performing business activities that are called health care operations. Health care operations include doing things that allow us to improve the quality of care we provide and to reduce health care costs.

Patient/Parent/Legal Guardian (circ	cle one)
Patient's Address:	
Patient's Contact Telephone:	
Patient's Email:	
Witness:	Date:

# Seattle Christian Counseling

# Dr. Maria D. Reyes, PsyD., LMHC, NCC, BCPCC

Professional Counseling for Individuals 3212 Northwest Byron Street, Suite# 201, Silverdale, WA 98383 (360) 262-6301

#### HIPAA COMPLIANCE NOTICE OF PRIVACY PRACTICES

This notice describes how medical information about you may be used and disclosed, and how you can get access to this information. This information will include Protected Health Information (PHI), as that term is defined in privacy regulations issued by the United States Department of Health and Human Services pursuant to the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 ("HIPAA") and, as applicable, RCW Chapter 70.02 entitled "Medical Records - Health Care Access and Disclosure." Please review it carefully.

We respect your privacy. We understand that your personal health information is very sensitive. We will not disclose your information to others unless you tell us to do so, or unless the law authorizes or requires us to do so. The law protects the privacy of the health information we create and obtain in providing our care and services to you. For example, your protected health information includes your symptoms, test results, diagnoses, treatments, health information from other providers, and billing and payment information relating to these services. Federal and state law allows us to use and disclose your protected health information for purposes of treatment and health care operations. State law requires us to get your authorization to disclose this information for payment purposes.

#### **Protected Health Information:**

Protected health information means individually identifiable health information:

- Transmitted by electronic media.
- · Maintained in any medium described in the definition of electronic media; or
- Transmitted or maintained in any other form or medium.

Examples of Use and Disclosures of Protected Health Information for Treatment, Payment, and Health Operations

#### For treatment:

- Information obtained by a nurse, physician, clinical psychologist, MSW, therapist, or other member of our health care team will be recorded in your medical record and used to help decide what care may be right for you.
- We may also provide information to others providing you care. This will help them stay informed about your care.

#### For payment:

• In Washington State, written patient permission is required to use or disclose PHI for payment purposes, including to your health insurance plan. We will have you sign another form Assignment of Benefits or similar form for this purpose (RCW 70.02.030(6)). Health plans need information from us about your medical care. Information provided to health plans may include your diagnosis, procedures performed, or recommended care.

#### For health care operations:

- We use your medical records to assess quality and improve services.
- We may use and disclose medical records to review the qualifications and performance of our health care providers and to train our staff.
- We may contact you to remind you about appointments and give you information about treatment alternatives or other health-related benefits and services.
- We may use and disclose your information to conduct or arrange for services, including
  medical quality review by your health plan.
  accounting, legal, risk management, and insurance services.
  audit functions, including fraud and abuse detection and compliance programs.

(Patient Initials)	



Professional Counseling for Individuals 3212 Northwest Byron Street, Suite# 201, Silverdale, WA 98383 (360) 262-6301

#### YOUR HEALTH INFORMATION RIGHTS

The health and billing records we create, and store are the property of health care provider. The protected health information in it, however, generally belongs to you. You have a right to:

- Receive, read, and ask questions about this Notice.
- Ask us to restrict certain uses and disclosures. You must deliver this request in writing to us. We are not required to grant the request. But we will comply with any request granted.
- Request and receive from us a paper copy of the most current Notice of Privacy Practices for Protected Health Information ("Notice").
- Request that you be allowed to see and get a copy of your protected health information. You may make this request in writing. We have a form available for this type of request.
- Have us review a denial of access to your health information—except in certain circumstances.
- Ask us to change your health information. You may give us this request in writing. You may write a statement
  of disagreement if your request is denied. It will be stored in your medical record and included with any release
  of your records.
- When you request, we will give you a list of disclosures of your health information. The list will not include disclosures to third-party payors. You may receive this information without charge once every 12 months. We will notify you of the cost involved if you request this information more than once in 12 months.
- Ask that your health information be given to you by another means or at another location. Please sign, date, and give us your request in writing.
- Cancel prior authorizations to use or disclose health information by giving us a written revocation. Your revocation does not affect information that has already been released. It also does not affect any action taken before we have it. Sometimes, you cannot cancel an authorization if its purpose was to obtain insurance.

For help with these rights during normal business hours, please contact our Privacy Officer:

Dr. Maria D. Reyes, PsyD., LMHC, NCC, BCPCC 3212 Northwest Bryon Street, Suite 201 Silverdale, WA 98383 Tel: (360) 262-6301

#### **Psychotherapy Notes:**

Notes recorded (in any medium) by a health care provider who is a mental health professional documenting or analyzing the contents of a conversation during a private counseling session or a group, joint, or family counseling session and that are separated from the rest of the individual's medical record. *Psychotherapy notes* excludes medication prescription and monitoring, counseling session start and stop times, the modalities and frequencies of treatment furnished, results of clinical tests, and any summary of the following items: diagnosis, functional status, the treatment plan, symptoms, prognosis, and progress to date. An authorization to use or disclose psychotherapy notes is required except if used by the originator of the notes for treatment, to a person or persons reasonably able to prevent or lessen the threat (including the target of the threat), if the originator believes in good faith that the use or disclosure is necessary to prevent or lessen a serious and imminent threat to the health or safety of a person or the public, if the notes are to be used in the course of training students, trainees or practitioners in mental health; to defend a legal action or any other legal proceeding brought forth by the patient; when used by a medical examiner or coroner; for health oversight activities of the originator; or when required by law.

(	Patient	Initials)
---	---------	-----------



Professional Counseling for Individuals 3212 Northwest Byron Street, Suite# 201, Silverdale, WA 98383 (360) 262-6301

#### **OUR RESPONSIBILITIES**

#### We are required to:

- Keep your protected health information private.
- Give you this Notice.
- Follow the terms of this Notice.

We have the right to change our practices regarding the protected health information we maintain. If we make changes, we will update this Notice. You may receive the most recent copy of this Notice by calling and asking for it or by visiting our office or medical records department to pick one up.

#### To Ask for Help or Complain

If you have questions, want more information, or want to report a problem about the handling of your protected health information, you may contact our Privacy Officer at the above address.

If you believe your privacy rights have been violated, you may discuss your concerns with the Privacy Officer. You may send a written complaint to the Washington State Department of Health at:

510 4<sup>th</sup> Avenue W, Suite 404 Seattle, WA 98119

You may also file a complaint with the U.S. Secretary of Health and Human Services.

We respect your right to file a complaint with us or with the U.S. Secretary of Health and Human Services. If you complain, we will not retaliate against you.

#### Other Disclosures and Uses of Protected Health Information Notification of Family and Others:

• Unless you object, we may release health information about you to a friend or family member who is involved in your medical care. We may also give information to someone who helps pay for your care. We may tell your family or friends your condition and that you are in a hospital. This would be limited to your name and general health condition (for example, "critical," "poor," "fair," "good" or similar statements). In addition, we may disclose health information about you to assist in disaster relief efforts.

You have the right to object to this use or disclosure of your information. If you object, we will not use or disclose it.

(Patient Initials)



Professional Counseling for Individuals 3212 Northwest Byron Street, Suite# 201, Silverdale, WA 98383 (360) 262-6301

#### PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION

We may use and disclose your protected health information without your authorization as follows:

- With Medical Researchers—if the research has been approved and has policies to protect the privacy of your health information. We may also share information with medical researchers preparing to conduct a research project.
- To the Food and Drug Administration (FDA) relating to problems with food, supplements, and products.
- To Comply with Workers' Compensation Laws if you make a workers' compensation claim.

#### For Public Health and Safety Purposes as Allowed or Required by Law:

- to prevent or reduce a serious, immediate threat to the health or safety of a person or the public.
- to public health or legal authorities
- to protect public health and safety
- to prevent or control disease, injury, or disability
- to report vital statistics such as births or deaths.
- To Report Suspected Abuse or Neglect to public authorities.
- **To Correctional Institutions** if you are in jail or prison, as necessary for your health and the health and safety of others.
- **For Law Enforcement Purposes** such as when we receive a subpoena, court order, or other legal process, or you are the victim of a crime.
- For Health and Safety Oversight Activities. For example, we may share health information with the Department of Health.
- **For Disaster Relief Purposes**. For example, we may share health information with disaster relief agencies to assist in notification of your condition to family or others.
- For Work-Related Conditions That Could Affect Employee Health. For example, an employer may ask us to assess health risks on a job site.
- To the Military Authorities of U.S. and Foreign Military Personnel. For example, the law may require us to provide information necessary to a military mission.
- In the Course of Judicial/Administrative Proceedings at your request, or as directed by a subpoena or court order.
- For Specialized Government Functions. For example, we may share information for national security purposes.
- To Coroners, Medical Examiners, Funeral Directors. We may disclose PHI to a coroner or medical examiner to identify a deceased person and determine the cause of death. In addition, we may disclose PHI to funeral directors, as authorized by law, so that they may carry out their jobs.
- **Organ and Tissue Donations**. If you are an organ donor, we may use or disclose PHI to organizations that help procure, locate, and transplant organs in order to facilitate an organ, eye or tissue donation and transplantation.
- **Incidental Disclosures**. We may use or disclose PHI incident to a use or disclosure permitted by the HIPAA Privacy Rule so long as we have reasonably safeguarded against such incidental uses and disclosures and have limited them to the minimum necessary information.
- **Limited Data Set Disclosures**. We may use or disclose a limited data set (PHI that has certain identifying information removed) for purposes of research, public health, or health care operations. This information may only be disclosed for research, public health, and health care operations purposes. The person receiving the information must sign an agreement to protect the information.

(Patient Initials)



Professional Counseling for Individuals 3212 Northwest Byron Street, Suite# 201, Silverdale, WA 98383 (360) 262-6301

#### SPECIAL AUTHORIZATIONS

Certain federal and state laws that provide special protections for certain kinds of personal health information call for specific authorizations from you to use or disclose information. When your personal health information falls under these special protections, we will contact you to secure the required authorizations to comply with federal and state laws such as:

- Uniform Health Care Information Act (RCW 70.02)
- Sexually Transmitted Diseases (RCW 70.24.105)
- Drug and Alcohol Abuse Treatment Records (RCW 70.96A.150)
- Mental Health Services for Minors (RCW 71.05.390-690)
- Communicable and Certain Other Diseases Confidentiality (WAC 246-100-016)
- Confidentiality of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Patients (42 CFR Part 2)

If we need your health information for any other reason that has not been described in this notice, we will ask for your written authorization before using or disclosing any identifiable health information about you. Most important, if you choose to sign an authorization to disclose information, you can revoke that authorization at a later time to stop any future use and disclosure.

#### Other Uses and Disclosures of Protected Health Information

• Uses and disclosures not in this Notice will be made only as allowed or required by law or with your written authorization.

Effective Date:	. 20

#### ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF NOTICE OF PRIVACY PRACTICES AND FINANCIAL AGREEMENT

(Pursuant to the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) and RCW 70.02.120)

**Dr. Maria D. Reyes** keeps a record of the health care services we provide you. You may ask to see and copy that record. You may also ask to correct that record. We will not disclose your record to others unless you direct us to do so or unless the law authorizes or compels us to do so. You may see your record or get more information about it by contacting our Privacy Officer. Written requests should be made to the Privacy Officer at the following address:

Dr. Maria Reyes, PsyD., LMHC, NCC, BCPCC

3212 Northwest Byron Street, Suite 201 Silverdale, WA 98383 Tel: (360) 262-6301

Our **Notice of Privacy Practices** describes in more detail how your health information may be used and disclosed, and how you can access your information.



Professional Counseling for Individuals 3212 Northwest Byron Street, Suite# 201, Silverdale, WA 98383 (360) 262-6301

#### PATIENT ACKNOWLEDGMENT

#### BY MY SIGNATURE BELOW I ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF THE NOTICE OF PRIVACY PRACTICES.

**VERIFICATION OF MEDICAL CONSENT:** I, the undersigned, hereby agree and consent to the plan of care proposed to me by the Covered Entity. I understand that I, or my authorized representative, have the right to decide whether to accept or refuse medical care. I will ask for any information I want to have about my medical care and will make my wishes known to the Covered Entity and/or its staff. The Covered Entity shall not be liable for the acts or omissions of others.

**AUTHORIZATION TO RELEASE INFORMATION – IF APPLICABLE:** I, the undersigned, hereby authorize the Covered Entity and/or its staff, to the extent required to assure payment, to disclose any diagnosis and pertinent medical information to a designated person, corporation, governmental agency or third party payer which is liable to the Covered Entity for the Covered Entity's charges or who may be responsible for determining the necessity, appropriateness, or amount related to the Covered Entity's treatment or charges, including medical service companies, insurance companies, workmen's compensation carriers, Social Security Administration, intermediaries, and the State Department of Health and Human Services when the patient is a Medicaid or Medicare recipient. This consent shall expire upon final payment relative to my care.

#### **FINANCIAL AGREEMENT:**

**PRIVATE PAY:** I, the undersigned, hereby agree, whether signing as agent or as a patient, to be financially responsible to the Covered Entity for all charges not paid by insurance. I understand this amount is due at the beginning of the session.

**INSURANCE COVERAGE** – **IF APPLICABLE:** I certify that the information given to me in applying for payment under government or private insurance is correct. I hereby assign payment directly to the Covered Entity for benefits otherwise payable to me. Any portion of charges not paid by the insurance company will be billed to me and is then due and payable within thirty (30) days of invoice. I understand the Covered Entity will verify my insurance coverage but that this does not guarantee payment by the insurance company, and I will be responsible for all non-covered charges. I understand that it is my responsibility to determine the coverage limits of my insurance.

I understand a minimum monthly fee of 1% (annual rate of 12%) may be charged for late payment on all balances not covered by insurance. This is in addition to a charge for reasonable attorney fees, court costs, and collection agency expenses incurred to collect the amount due.

(Patient Initials)



Professional Counseling for Individuals 3212 Northwest Byron Street, Suite# 201, Silverdale, WA 98383 (360) 262-6301

#### ONLINE THERAPY INFORMED CONSENT

I hereby consent to engaging in telemedicine (also referred to as online therapy) with Dr. Maria D. Reyes for psychotherapy services. I understand that "telemedicine" includes the practice of health care delivery, diagnosis, consultation, treatment, transfer of medical data, and education using interactive audio, video, or data communications. I understand that telemedicine also involves the communication of my medical/mental health information, both orally and visually, to health care practitioners located in Washington or outside of Washington.

#### I understand that I have the following rights with respect to telemedicine:

I have the right to withhold or withdraw consent at any time without affecting my right to future care or treatment; nor risking the loss or withdrawal of any program benefits to which I would otherwise be entitled.

The laws that protect the confidentiality of my medical information also apply to telemedicine. As such, I understand that the information disclosed by me during my therapy is generally confidential. However, there are both mandatory and permissive exceptions to confidentiality, including, but not limited to reporting child, elder, and dependent adult abuse; expressed threats of violence towards an ascertainable victim or myself; and where I make my mental or emotional state an issue in a legal proceeding. This information is detailed in the Notice of Privacy Practices that I received. I also understand that the dissemination of any personally identifiable images or information from the telemedicine interaction to researchers or other entities shall not occur without my written consent.

I accept that telemedicine does not provide emergency services. During our first session, Dr. Maria D. Reyes and I will discuss an emergency response plan. If I am experiencing an emergency, I understand that I can call 911 or proceed to the nearest hospital emergency room for help. If I am having suicidal thoughts or making plans to harm myself, I can call the National Suicide Prevention Lifeline at 1-800-273-TALK (8255) for free 24-hour hotline support.

I understand that I have a right to access my medical information and copies of medical records in accordance with Washington and Washington law.

I understand that I may benefit from telemedicine, but that results cannot be guaranteed or assured. Advantages of telemedicine include but are not limited to increased access to a broader range or providers, elimination of transportation concerns such as access and cost, easier access for clients whose concerns around travel/anxiety/interaction would have prevented their access to services, reduced risk for medically fragile clients, increased comfort, and familiarity for clients in their own environments.

(Patient Initials)



Professional Counseling for Individuals 3212 Northwest Byron Street, Suite# 201, Silverdale, WA 98383 (360) 262-6301

### ONLINE THERAPY INFORMED CONSENT PART-2

I understand that telemedicine-based services and care may not be as complete as face-to-face services. I also understand that if my psychotherapist believes I would be better served by another form of psychotherapeutic services (e.g., face-to-face services) I will be referred to a psychotherapist who can provide such services in my area. Finally, I understand that there are potential risks and benefits associated with any form of psychotherapy, and that despite my efforts and the efforts of my psychotherapist, my condition may not be improved, and in some cases, may even get worse.

I understand that there are technological risks specific to telemedicine, including, but not limited to, the possibility, despite reasonable efforts on the part of my psychotherapist, that: the transmission of my medical information could be disrupted or distorted by technical failures; the transmission of my medical information could be interrupted by unauthorized persons; and/or the electronic storage of my medical information could be accessed by unauthorized persons. I understand that my risks of a privacy violation increase substantially when I enter information on a public access computer, use a computer that is on a shared network, allow a computer to "auto- remember" usernames and passwords, or use my work computer for personal communications; and that I am solely responsible for securing this end of our interaction.

#### I understand that I am responsible for:

- (1) Providing the necessary computer, telecommunications equipment for my telemedicine,
- (2) Personal security and or protection on my computer,
- (3) Location with sufficient lighting and privacy that is free from distractions or intrusions,
- (4) Reliable and secure high-speed internet connection.
- (5) Backup form of communication (handy and on record) if the internet connection fails.

After we connect, I will help my therapist complete a check-in to ascertain the immediate suitability of telemedicine by verifying my name, location, whether I am in a situation conducive to a private, uninterrupted session, and my readiness to proceed. I will maintain current local emergency contact information with my therapist.

Patient Name:	
Patient Signature:	
Date:	

I have read and understand the information provided above.



Professional Counseling for Individuals 3212 Northwest Byron Street, Suite# 201, Silverdale, WA 98383 (360) 262-6301

#### VIDEO AND AUDIO RECORDING RELEASE

As an additional support for your counseling process, it is sometimes beneficial to use video feedback as part of our work together. This means that I may ask to video or audio record you during specific dialogues, exercises, or during entire sessions. This will give us the option to play back these tapes in session to help you see patterns of behavior in yourself or your significant other (if applicable). Because it usually takes some time to setup a video camera or audio recorder, I'm requesting that we do the paperwork for this on the front end so that we can devote as much time to working on the issues that bring you into counseling. By viewing the videotape or listening to the audio recording in session, it allows us to "stop action" and process how you might approach an issue in a more productive way. It also allows you to witness your progress with your counselor and/or your relationship.

In addition to in-session use, I occasionally may use the video footage or audio recording to receive consultation from other health care professionals that I consult with. This may occur during time of treatment or thereafter for purposes of peer review, education, and quality assurance. During this process, your name will be kept confidential. In addition, all matters discussed with other health care providers will remain completely confidential. The video or audio recording will be used for no other purpose without your written permission, and it will be deleted when it is no longer needed for these purposes.

longer needed for these purposes.	
my possession throughout the course of your cour recordings for any reason, we will arrange a sess	<b>D. Reyes, PsyD., LMHC, NCC, BCPCC</b> and will remain solely in nseling and until they are destroyed. Should you wish to review these sion to do so. When unattended by me, these materials will always mputer systems to ensure maximum confidentiality.
pertinent in the counseling of my/ourselves, my. video, and audio recordings are strictly confiden reporting of threats, violence, harm or child abuse subpoenaed by the courts.  In no way will the refusal to grant consent for	our permission for any audio or video recording that may be deemed four marriage, or my/our family. The counseling sessions, records, atial except where I consent to release, where state law requires the e, and neglect (from evidence or suspicion), and when information is this video or audio recording effect my/our getting assistance for permission in writing at any time, but until I do so, it shall remain in
Patient	Date
(signature)	(printed name)
Counselor(signature)	DateDr. Maria D. Reyes, PsyD., LMHC, NCC, BCPCC



Professional Counseling for Individuals 3212 Northwest Byron Street, Suite# 201, Silverdale, WA 98383 (360) 262-6301

# CREDIT CARD PAYMENT AUTHORIZATION FORM

Sign and complete this form to authorize <b>Seattle</b> below.	Christian Counseling, PLLC to debit your credit card as listed
indicated date. This is permission for therapeutic <b>Counseling, PLLC</b> , and does not provide auth account. Credit cards may be run if you forget to cards will also be debited if you fail to give ade	to debit your account for the amount indicated on or after the treatment fees accrued while in treatment with <b>Seattle Christian</b> norization for any additional unrelated debits or credits to your o bring cash, check, or a valid credit card to your session. Credit equate notice by phone of missing an appointment. No more than lled. A receipt of credit card processing will be sent to the email
Please complete the information below:	
fee for counseling is \$250 initial intake session are run in the 53-minute session format. Fees accepayment at the time of service will be process fee, there will be a fee for using your credit card, Seattle Christian Counseling, PLLC. Fees change	(full name printed) authorize <b>Seattle Christian Counseling</b> , ted below (your card may also be copied for our records). The for individuals and \$200 per follow up session. Initial sessions <b>crued for missed appointments or failure to provide sed via credit card at a rate of \$250.</b> In addition to your session which will be the exact amount the credit card company charges a regularly but will range between 2.5%-4% of your transaction. please ask Dr. Maria Reyes at the time of your appointment.
Billing Address	Phone #
City, State, Zip	Date
Account Type: ☐ Visa ☐ MasterCard	d
Cardholder Name	
Expiration Date	
CVV2 (3-digit number on back of Visa/MC)	
the terms outlined above. This payment authoriza	C to charge the credit card indicated in this authorization form according to ation is for the goods/services described above, for the amounts indicated of this credit card and that I will not dispute the payment with my credit onds to the terms indicated inthis form.
SIGNATURE	DATE

(Patient Initials)